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AUDITOR'S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
M/S. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of M/S. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED (“the
Company”),which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. My responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemments section of my report. I am
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under,
and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion on the financial statements.
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M/S K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
COIMBATORE

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report,

but does not include the financial statements and my auditors’ report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, My responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I

have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) specified under section
133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

or ok g
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M/S K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
COIMBATORE

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, [am
also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements in place _al\}gi_ the operating
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M/S K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
COIMBATORE

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the

Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that [ have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.




M/S K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by

the Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, I give in the “ Annexure

AII

a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

a)

d)

f)

I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit.

In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from my examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In my opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified

under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 1,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to my separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in my opinion and to
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i.  There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of
the Company.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors” Report under section 197(16):
In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, no
remuneration is paid by the company to its directors during the current year. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)

which are required to be commented upon by me.
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M/S K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
COIMBATORE

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the audit of the financial statements of

M/S. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED for the vear ended March 31, 2020

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of my report of even date)

()

(i)

(iv)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In my opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with
this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and according to
the information and explanations given to me, no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable

properties are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The inventory, except goods in transit, has been physically verified by the management
during the year. In my opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The
discrepancies noticed on such verification between the physical stocks and the book

records were not material.

According to the information and explanations given to me, the Company has not
granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in

the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans given, investments made and, guarantees and securities given, as
applicable.

In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the
Company has not accepted any deposits covered under section 73 to 76 or any other

relevant provisions of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of ﬂle\’.\gl(;)]é"del' is not
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(vi)

(wvii)

M/S K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
COIMBATORE

I have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended, prescribed by the
Central Government under Section 148 of the Act in respect of products manufactured
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. However, I have not made a detailed examination of such

records.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of my
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees” state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs
and other material statutory dues have generally been deposited on a regular basis

by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to me, no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of provident fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, goods
and services tax, duty of customs and other material statutory dues were in arrears as
at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to me, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs and
excise duty which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on

account of any disputes.

(viii) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the

(i)

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The
Company did not have any loans or borrowings due to financial institutions,

debenture holders or government during the year.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. In my opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to me, monies raised by way of term loans have

been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.
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(x) According to the information and explanations given to me, no fraud by the Company
or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or

reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my
examination of the records, the Company has not paid/ provided for managerial
remuneration during the year and hence the provisions of section 197 read with

Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xii) In my opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required

by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the,Order is not applicable.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the audit of the financial statements of

M/S. KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of my report of even date)

Opinion

I have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
M/S5.KPR SUGAR MILL LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with

my audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors” Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

10
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Auditors’ Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established

and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. My audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance tha fransactions

VLN
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are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

\

/ 0 ™

UDIN: 20200518 AAAABV6103 \ \ (\;'(,;W W i
| AN S
Place: Coimbatore | ' M.RAMASAMY
Date: June 24, 2020 M.NO.200518

CA. M. RAMASAMY B.Sc., FC.A,,
Chartered Accountant
Seethalakshmi Ammal Plaza.
120. Venkatakrishna Road, R.S Puram,
Coimbatore - 641 002
Membership Ne- 200518

12



K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2020

(% in Lakhs)
As at As at
Note 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 43,135 32,620
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 5 108
(c) Other non - current assets 5 1,224 1,968
(d) Deferred Tax Assets(net) 6 1,476 986
Total non - current assets 45,840 35,682
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 20,998 25,716
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 9,181 5,750
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9 422 641
(iii) Other bank balances 10 17 -
(c) Other current assets 11 2,836 739
Total current assets . 33,454 32,846
Total assets 79,294 68,528
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES '
(1) Equity
(a) Share capital 12 583| 583
(b) Other equity 13 40,255 31,908
Total equity 40,838 32,491
(2) Non - current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 14,016 4,801
(b) Other non-current liabilities 15 5,124 6,050
Total non - current liabilities 19,140 10,851
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 12,954 12,214
(ii) Trade payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 17(A) 1 6
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises 17(B) 2,178 9,559
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 4,027 1,481
(b) Other current liabilities 19 156 1,926
Total current liabilities 19,316 25,186
Total equity and liabilities 79,294 68,528
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes from 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors "To be read with my report of even date"

K.P.Ramasamy—
Director = e
DIN: 00003736
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M. Ramasamy
™ Chartered Accountant
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

(% in Lakhs)
Note Year Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
l. Revenue from operations 20 54,210 45,344
II. Other income 21 3,109 3,048
lll. Total Income (I+l1) 57,319 48,392
IV. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 36,090 40,505
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work- in-progress and
stock in trade 23 4,704 (4,113)
Employee benefits expense 24 318 293
Finance costs 25 1,271 1,144
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4 3,651 3,398
Other expenses 26 1,714 1,818
V. Total expenses 47,748 43,045
VI. Profit before tax (llI-V) ; 9,571 5,347
VIl. Tax expenses
Current tax
- Pertaining to current year 1,672 1,152
- Pertaining to prior year 12 (131)
Deferred tax (490) (95)
Income tax expense 1,194 926
VIIl. Profit for the year (VI-VII) 8,377 4,421
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
IX. Net other comprehensive income R .
X. Total comprehensive income for the year (VIII+IX) 8,377 4,421
Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basic and diluted EPS (in ) 34 407.12 214.15
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes from 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors "To ?e read with my report of even date"

W Pl guater

K.P.Ramésg_my// M.Ramasamy

Director
DIN: 00003736

N W,

Chartered Accountant

CA. M. RAMASAMY B.Sc. FCA,

KPD Sigamani ‘Na é P.Kand_é?'.wamy s Chartered Accountant
Director Director Company Secretary 120 \Zit::t’aks_hm' Ammal Plazg
DIN: 00003744 DIN: 00229137 ' Cmf‘#g;{‘”a Road, RS Pyram
ore - 641 00y
Coimbatore Membership No- 200515
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

( in Lakhs)
Year Ended
PARTICULARS
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 8,377 4,421
Adjustments for:
Income tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 1,194 926
loss
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,651 3,398
Loss on sale of assets ' 2 (3)
Finance costs 1,271 1,144
Rental income from operating leases (3,000) (3,000)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 11,495 6,886
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments For (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 4,718 (2,101)
Trade receivables (3,431) 3,436
Other current assets (2,096) 4,374
Other non-current assets (79) (309)
Other financial ssset . 1,965
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (7,386) (1,905)
Other current liabilities (1,766) 1,484
Other non current liabilities (1,319) (558)
Bank Balance Not Considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i) Margin Deposit Account (17) .
Cash Generated From Operations 119 13,272
Net income tax (paid) (1,684) (1,417)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) (1,565) 11,855
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipments (12,824) (3,211)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 20 11
Rental Income Received from Operating Leases 3,000 3,000
Net Cash Flow Used In Investing Activities (B) (9,804) (200)




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020
(% in Lakhs)
Year Ended

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

PARTICULARS

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 7,860 648
Repayment of long-term borrowings 3,852 (1,098)
Net increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings 740 (9,734)
Finance costs paid (1,271) (1,144)
Dividends paid (26) (26)
Tax on dividend paid (5) (5)
Net Cash Flow Used In Financing Activities (C) 11,150 (11,359)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (219) 296
Add: Opening cash and cash equivalents 641 345
Closing Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No 9) 422 641
Closing cash and cash equivalents comprises
(a) Cash on hand 33 17
(b) Balance with banks:

i) In Current accounts 388 624

ii) In EEFC accounts 1 -

422 641

Significant accounting policies 3

The notes from 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors "To bé read with my report of even date"
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K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

a. Equity Share Capital

(T in Lakhs)
Ralance as at April 01, 2018 205
Changes during the year =
Balance as at March 31, 2019 205
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 205
b. Preference Share Capital
Balance as at April 01, 2018 378
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 378
Changes during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 378
¢.Other Equity (T in Lakhs)

Securities | Capital | General |Retained | Total Other
Particulars Premium | Reserve | Reserve |Earnings Equity
Reserve

Balance as at April 01, 2018 10,659 293 - 16,666 27,518
Profit for the year - - - 4,421 4,421
Preference dividend - - - (26) (26)
Tax on Dividend - - - (5) 5
Balance as at March 31, 2019 10,559 293 - 21,056 31,908
Profit for the year - - - 8,377 8,377
Preference dividend - . - (26) (26)
Tax on Dividend - - . (5) (5)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 10,559 293 - 29,402 40,254
Significant accounting policies 3

The notes from 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director
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Director
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K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 .03.2020

1 COMPANY OVERVIEW
K.P.R.Sugar Mill Limited ("the Company') is the Wholly owned Subsidiary Company of K.P.R.Mill Limited.
Plant Located at Vijayapur District, Karnataka State. It produces Sugar along with Green Energy viz., Co-
Gen Power.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

A STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act, as amended from time
to time.
These financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 are authorised by the Board on 24.06.2020.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in note 3.

B Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

C BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and on an accrual basis, except
for the following items:
i. Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss;
ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments) and

iii. Net defined (asset) / liability measured at fair value & plan assets less present value of obligations.

D USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT.
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Judgement

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 11 - classification, measurement and recognition of Government grants
Note 3(H) and 32: Financial instruments: Classification and measurement

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is mentioned below. Actual results may be different
from these estimates.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets:

In assessing impairment, management has estimated economic use of assets, the recoverable amount of
each asset or cash- generating units based on expected future cash flows and use an interest rate to

discount them. Estimation of uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating cash flows and
determination of a suitable discount rate. (also refer Note 3)

(ii) Useful lives of depreciable assets:
Management reviews its estimate of useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on

expected utility of assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may
change utility of assets (also refer Note 3). ;




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

(iii) Inventories:

Management has carefully estimated the net realizable values of inventories, taking into account the most
reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realization of these inventories may be affected
by market-driven changes (also refer Note 3).

(iv) Defined benefit obligation (DBO):

The actuarial valuation of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying management's assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit
expenses (also Refer Note 37)

(v) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources (also refer Note 29).

(vi) Impairment of financial assets - Refer Note 3

E MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. The inputs used to measure the fair value of assets or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy. Accordingly, the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the low level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Management uses various valuation techniques to determine fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument. Management based on its assumptions on observable data
as far as possible but where it not available, the management uses the best information available. Estimated
fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length fransaction at the
reporting date (also refer Note 32). The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

F CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash

and cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

':? M.No. 'jn'
©\ 200518 0



K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

G CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all the
periods present in these financial statements.

The Company applied Ind AS 116, Leases, with effect from 01.04.2019, and has changed its accounting
policy for lease contracts as detailed below.

The Company applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach. The Company has applied the
standard to its leases, on a lease by lease basis, by taking an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of initial application (01.04.2019). Accordingly, the comparative information
presented for the year ended 31 03.2019 is not restated — i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under
Ind AS 17. The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below. Additionally, the disclosure
requirements in Ind AS 116 have not generally been applied to comparative information.

A. Definition of a lease

Previously, the Company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or contained a
lease under Ind AS 17 Leases. The Company now, assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition of a lease, as explained in Note 3(L).

On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company elected to apply the practical expedient to consider the
assessment of which transactions are leases. The Company applied Ind AS 116 only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under Ind AS 17 were not
reassessed for whether there is a lease under Ind AS 116. Therefore, the definition of a lease under Ind AS
116 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 01.04. 2019.

B. As alesse

As a lessee, the Company leases assets that are in the nature of land and buildings, plant and machinery
and vehicles. The Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the underlying asset fo the Company.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value including necessary provision for
obsolescence. The cost of raw materials, components, stock-in-trade, consumable stores and spare parts
are determined using first-in first-out / specific identification method and includes freight, taxes and duties,
net of duty credits wherever applicable, and any other expense incurred in bringing them to their present
location and condition. In the case of finished goods and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost
of completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with
reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials, stores and spares, packing and
others held for use in the production of finished goods are not written down below except in cases where

material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished goods will exceed their net
realizable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (FOR PURPOSES OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT)
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

C) CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information. In cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances
with banks in current accounts and other short- term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

D) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS
Recognition and measurement:
Free hold land is stated at historical cost. ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost,
which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
a. purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and service tax),
after deducting trade discounts and rebates.
b. any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

c. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Any gain/ loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure ;

Subsequent costs are included in asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company.

Component accounting

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset or part

of the asset (after considering double/triple shifts) as evaluated on technical assessment on straight-line
method, in accordance with Part A of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful life of the property, plant and equipment followed by the Company for the current and
the comparative period are as follows :

Factory Building ~ 30 Years
Non Factory Building ~ 60 Years
Plant & Equipments ~10-20 Years
Electricals - ~ 14 Years
Computers & accessories ~ 3 Years
Furniture's & fixtures ~10 Years

Vehicles ~ 8-10 Years




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if necessary, for each reporting period. Based on technical assessment and consequent advice, the
management believes that its estimate of useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use the asset.

On property, plant and equipment added/ disposed off during the year, depreciation is charged on pro-rata
basis for the period from/upto which the asset is ready for use/disposed off.

Capital work-in-progress

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. They are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

The estimated amount of intangible asset consisting software license is 3 years.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

E) REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company generates revenue primarily from sale of Sugar, power,Ethanol,Molasses and Readymade
Garments. The Company also earns revenue from rendering of services.

1.1 Sale of products:

Revenue is recognised when a promise in a customer contract (performance obligation) has been satisfied
by transferring control over the promised goods to the customer. Control over a promised good refers to the
ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from, those goods. Control is
usually transferred upon shipment, delivery to, upon receipt of goods by the customer, in accordance with
the individual delivery and acceptance terms agreed with the customers.

The amount of revenue to be recognized (transaction price) is based on the consideration expected to be
received in exchange for goods, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales tax or
other taxes directly linked to sales. If a contract contains more than one performance obligation, the
transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. Revenue from product sales are recorded net of allowances for estimated rebates, cash discounts
and estimates of product returns, all of which are established at the time of sale.

S MNo. \
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K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

1.2 Revenue from services:
Revenue from sale of services is recognised when related services are rendered.

F) OTHER INCOME
Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established and when no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.
Rental income under operating leases is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease except where such receipts are structured to increase in line with the
expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s (lessor) expected inflationary costs increases.

Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate method. Interest income on overdue receivables is
recognized only when there is a certainty of receipt.

Export incentives are accounted in the year of exports based on eligibility and expected amount on
realisation.

G) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATIONS
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlement of these transactions are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

H) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(i) Initial Recognition
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for

transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at
fair value.

The 'trade payable' is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased in the normal course of
business. They are recognised at their transaction and services availed value if the transaction do not
contain significant financing component.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or
- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the
following categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through profit
and loss account (FVTPL), non derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL and derivative
financial instruments (under the category of financial assets or financial liahilities) at FVTPL.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is
held. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

a) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVTPL :

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met and is not designated as at FVTPL:

(a) the objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for trading is classified as FVTPL.

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value in OCI. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

instrument, excluding dividend are recognised in OCI which is not subsequently recycled to statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
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K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows,;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable

additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

b) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency assets or liabilities and forecasted cash
flows denominated in foreign currencies. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives are recognized and measured at fair value. Attributable transaction costs are recognized in
statement of profit and loss. Subsequent. to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are generally recognised in profit and loss.

I) GOVERNMENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND EXPORT INCENTIVES

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the
Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in statement of
profit and loss as other operating revenue / other income on a systematic basis.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over

the period necessary to match them with the costs that they intended to compensate and presented in other
operating Revenue.

Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty
in receiving the same.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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J) INVESTMENTS
Long term investments (excluding investment properties) are carried at cost less provision for diminution
other than temporary in the value of such investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and
fair value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

K) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Short term employee benefit obligations:
A liability is recognised for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

(b) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund & Employee State Insurance

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. The Company makes specified contributions
towards Government administered provident fund scheme.

(c) Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Post
employment benefit comprise of Gratuity which are accounted for as follows:

Gratuity Fund

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets ( excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan

amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

L) LEASES

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17. The details of
accounting policies under Ind AS 17 is disclosed separately.

A. Policy applicable from 01.04.2019

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116. This policy is applied to contracts
entered into, on or after 01.04.2019

i) Company as a lessee:

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs

incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will
exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. The Company
determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources
that reflects the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

Hfixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

_variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

-amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
-the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension

option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if
there is a revision in —substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero. The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of
investment property in “property, plant and equipment” and lease liabilities in “other financial liabilities” in the
balance sheet.

Short term leases and low value assets:
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value.

The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

ii) As a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a

To classify each lease, the Company made an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case,
then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As a part of this assessment, the Group
considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term
based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

B. Policy applicable before 01.04.2019

i. As alessee

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Company classified leases that transferred substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were
measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease term that the lessee was
required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets were
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognized in the
Company’s balance sheet. Payments made under operating leases were recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognized as an integral part
of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

ii. As a lessor

When the Company acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease was a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company made an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was the case,
then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an operating lease. As a part of this assessment, the

Group considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was for the major part of the economic life of
the asset.

M) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing cost are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
horrowings to the extent that they are considered as adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with
the borrowings of funds. Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

N) SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and
the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which
separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by the executive Management in-deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on
market / fair value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue | expenses / assets /
liahilities”.
0O) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares). For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for

the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are considered for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

P) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense represents current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent

that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

i) CURRENT TAX

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax liabilities and current tax assets are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii) DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets-and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by same tax authority on same taxable entity, or on

different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or its tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

iii) Recognition
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Q) IMPAIRMENT
Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Company recognises loss allowance for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are credit losses that result from all possible default events over expected
life of financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information. The Company assumes that credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the recipient is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to

the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to an extent that asset’s carrying amount does not

exceed carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation/ amortisation, if no
impairment loss was recognised.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

R) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions:
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for
Contingent liabilities:
Whenever there is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because (a) it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are considered as
contingent liability.
Contingent assets:

The Company does not recognise contingent assets. These are assessed continually to ensure that the
developments are appropriately disclosed in these financial statements.

S) ONEROUS CONTRACTS

A contract is said to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from
the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meetings its obligations under the contract. The provision
for onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the
Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with the contract.

3A New standard and amendments to the existing standards issued but not yet effective

There are no new standard or amendments to the existing standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA") which would become applicable from 01.04.2020.
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K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (¥ in Lakhs
As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
FINANCIAL ASSETS
5|OTHERS NON - CURRENT ASSETS
(i) Capital advances 829 1,652
(i) Advances other than capital advances
Security deposit 9 7
Advance tax 89 309
(iii) Others
Refund Due from Income Tax 297 -
1,224 1,968
6|DEFERRED TAX
Deferred Tax Assets
MAT Credit Entitlement 3,786 3,211
Less :Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,310 2,225
1,476 986
7|INVENTORIES
Raw materials - 81
Stock-in-process * - 21
Finished goods 20,337 25,020
Stores, spares, packing and others 661 594
20,998 25,716
* Includes Garments Nil (Pr. Yr. ¥ 21 Lakhs).
The Mode of Valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 3
For the carrying value of inventories pledged as securities for borrowings, Refer note 14 & 16.
Average age of inventory is less than 90 days only.
FINANCIAL ASSETS
8| TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 9,201 5,770
Less: Loss allowance (20) (20)
Net trade receivables 9,181 5,750
9|CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 33 17
Balance with banks
i) In Current accounts 388 624
ii) In EEFC accounts 1 c
422 641
10{Other Bank Balances
i) In Deposit accounts 17 =

17




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (% in Lakhs
As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
11|OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advances other than Capital Advances
Advance for purchase 741 180
OTHERS
Balances with government authorities - GST receivable 1,318 48
Export Incentive Receivable 739 490
Others (Primarily prepaid expenses) 38 21
2,836 739
12|SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorised
Equity Capital
24,17,000 (Pr.Yr. 24,17,000) Equily Shares of ¥ 10 each 242 242
Preference Capital
47,83,000 (Pr.Yr.47,83,000) 7% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each 478 478
720 720
b) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Capital
20,50,000 (Pr.Yr. 20,50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up 205 205
Preference Capital
37,83,000 (Pr.Yr.37,83,000) 7% Optionally Convertible Non- Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each 378 378
583 583

12.1|Term / Rights to Shares
Equity Shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 per share. The holder of
each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after settling the dues of preferential and other creditors as per priority. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Preference Shares: 7% Optionally Convertible Non- Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares are

redeemable after the end of 7th year but within a period of 10 years from the date of issue at a premium of 7%
IRR.




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (X in Lakhs
As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
12.2|Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares with voting rights For the Year Ended 31.03.2020 For tsl';efo‘gc‘e:;;nded
Particulars Number of Shares | (% in Lakhs) N‘é'"r’]‘ggs"f @ in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the period 20,50,000 205 20,50,000 205
Changes during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 20,50,000 205 20,50,000 205
12.3|7% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
Particulars Number of Shares | (Z in Lakhs) Ng“.:ggs"f  in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the period 37,83,000 378 37,83,000 378
Changes during the year - - - =
Outstanding at the end of the period 37,83,000 378 37,83,000 378
12.4|Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares in the Company
a. Equity Shares
Particulars Number of Shares % Ngmber of %
hares
M/s K.P.R Mill Limited 20,50,000 100 20,50,000 100
b.7% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
Particulars Number of Shares % bRlmber e %
Shares
M/s K.P.R Mill Limited 37,83,000 100 37,83,000 100
13|OTHER EQUITY
Capital Reserve
Opening balance 293 293
Changes during the year - -
Closing balance (A) 293 293
Securities Premium
Opening balance 10,559 10,559
Changes during the year = -
Closing balance (B) 10,559 10,559
Balance in securities premium represents amount received on issue of shares in excess of par value.The same
may be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Retained Earnings
Opening balance 21,056 16,666
Add: Profit for the year 8,378 4,421
Less:
Preference dividend 26 26
Tax on Dividend
Tax on Preference dividend 5 5
5 5
Transferred to:
General Reserve £ =
Closing balance (C) 29,403 21,056
40,255 31,908
The above reserve represents profits generated and retained by the Company post distribution of dividends to
the equity shareholders in the respective years. This reserve can be utilized for distribution of dividend by the
Company considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
Total (A+B+C) r 40,255 31,908




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (in Lakhs

14

14.1

14.2

14.3
14.4

15

16

As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS
From Banks (Secured)
Term Loan
From banks (secured) 17,395 5,683
Less : amount included under 'other financial liabilities' (refer note 18) (4,011) (1,469)
13,384 4,214
From Others (Unsecured)
Interest Free Sales Tax Loan - NPV . 632 587
14,016 4,801

Term Loans from banks are secured by pari-passu first charge on fixed assets of the company and the second
charge on current assets has been given on pari-passu basis to Banks.

i) The Company has availed a term loan from ICICI Bank Limited in respect of which balance as at 31.03.2020
was T 3,919 lakhs (Pr.Yr. T 4,978 lakhs). The loan is repayable in 24 quarterly installments commencing from
March 2017. This term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on the factory and hostel building constructed out
of the loan and hypothecation of machineries purchased out of the loan.

ii) The Company has availed a term loan from Bank of Baroda in respect of which balance as at 31.03.2020
was T 8,476 lakhs (Pr.Yr. T 648 lakhs). The loan is repayable in 24 quarterly installments commencing from
March 2020. This term loan is secured by second charge on fixed asset.

iii) The Company has availed a term loan from ICICI Bank in respect of which balance as at 31.03.2020 was ¥
5,000 lakhs (Pr.Yr. Nil). The loan is repayable in 10 quarterly installments commencing from December 2020.
This term loan is secured by second charge on fixed asset.

iv) The Company has availed a term loan from Corporation Bank in respect of which balance as at 31.03.2020
was Nil (Pr.Yr 57 Lakhs). The loan is repayable in 12 quarterly instalments commencing from September
2016. This term loan is secured by second charge on fixed asset.

Interest rate relating to term loans from banks is in the range of 8.75% to 11.30% (Pr.Y. 9.15% to 11.30%)
The Company has not defaulted in its repayments of the loans and interest.

For the current maturities of long-term borrowings, refer note 18 Other financial liabilities.

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance received from customers 1,944 3,265

Rent Advance 2,500 2,500

Payables on purchase of Fixed Assets ' 438 -

Others

Deferred revenue arising from government grants 240 285

Security Deposit - Contractor 2 .-

5,124 6,050

CURRENT LIABILITIES

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS

Loans repayable on demand from banks - Secured

Loans for working capital 12,954 12,214
12,954 12,214




K.P.R.SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (T in Lakhs

16.1|i) Loans for working capital and packing credit are secured by pari passu first charge on the current assets of

As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Information about the company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks is included in Note 32

the Company and pari passu second charge on entire block of assets of the Company.

ii) The Company has not defaulted in its repayments of the loans and interest during the year.

iii) Interest rate relating to Working capital loans from banks is in the range of 8.70% to 9.60% (Pr.Yr. 8.95% to
9.60%)

(¥ in Lakhs)
Reconciliation of cashflows from financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents 422 641
Non-current borrowings (18,027) (6,270)
Current borrowings (12,954) (12,214)
Net debt ‘ (30,559) (17,843)

Other assets Liabilities from financing
activities
Non-current o
: ota
Cash and cash b.o rrow!ngs Current
: including .
equivalents borrowings
current
maturities
Net debt as at April 1, 2019 641 (6,270) (12,214) (17,843)
Net cash flows (219) (11,757) (740) (12,716)
Foreign exchange adjustments
Net debt as at March 31, 2020 ' 422 (18,027) (12,954) (30,559)|
Net debt as at April 1, 2018 345 (6,675) (21,948) (28,278)
Net cash flows 296 405 9,734 10,435
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 641 (6,270) (12,214) (17,843)
17| TRADE PAYABLES
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1 6
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2,178 9,559
2,179 9,565

(i) All the trade payables are current and non-interest bearing.
(i) Refer note 29 for details of dues to Micro and small enterprises.

(i) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 31.

(iv) For terms and conditions relating to related party payables, Refer Note 33

18|OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES .
Current maturities of long term loans (Refer Note 14) 4,011 1,469
Others 16 12
4,027 1,481

Information about the Group's exposure to currency, interest rate and liquidity risks is included in Note 32

19|OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance payment from customers (related party - refer note 33)
Statutory dues payable




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes Forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (¥ in Lakhs)
Year Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
20|REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products 50,213 43,977

Sale of services - -
Other operating revenues 3,997 1,367
Revenue from operations (gross) 54,210 45,344

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

In the following disclosure, Revenue from contract with customers have been disaggregated based on
the nature and type of goods sold.

20.1|Sale of products

Garment 18,729 18,191
Yarn 1 2
Fabric 55 462
Sugar 25,244 19,652
Molasses 1,160 1,465
Co-gen power 3,656 4,077

Ethanol 1,210 -
Accessories 158 128
50,213 43,977

20.2(Other Operating Revenues
Export incentives 3,885 1,240
Others 112 127
3,997 1,367
21|OTHER INCOME

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 2 3
Miscellaneous income . 49 45
Rental Income 3,058 3,000
3,109 3,048

22|COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
a) Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year

Yarn and fabric 81 1,761
81 1,761
b) Add: Purchases

Yarn, fabric and garments 16,637 10,677
Trims, packing and others 238 1,712
Sugar cane and coal 19,134 26,436
36,009 38,825

c) Less : Inventory of materials at the end of the year
Yarn and fabric - 81
- 81




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes Forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 (% in Lakhs)
Year Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK - IN - PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

A) Inventories at the beginning lof the year

23

Finished goods 25,020 20,737
Stock-in-process 21 191
25,041 20,928

B) Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 20,337 25,020
Stock-in-process - 21
20,337 25,041
Net (Increase) / Decrease 4,704 (4,113)

24| EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus 192 205
Contribution to provident and other funds 12 21
Staff welfare expenses 114 67
318 293

25|FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Term loans 677 512
Working capital loans 527 505
Interest on shortfall in payment of income tax 2 57
Others 20 25
Interest free sales tax loan : 45 45

1,271 1,144

26|0THER EXPENSES
Manufacturing expenses

Power and fuel 103 61
Consumption of stores, spares and packing materials 246 366
Repairs and Maintenance

Building 49 49
Machinery 558 665
Others 32 34
Insurance 5 26
Administration Expenses

Legal and professional charges 54 21
Rent 5 6
Rates and taxes 72 23
Payment to auditors (Refer note 27) 1 1
Travelling and conveyance 23 34
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Refer note

31) 140 138
Impairment loss on financial assets 10 -
General expenses . 28 40
Selling Expenses

Freight and forwarding 288 270
Sales commission 9 10
Other selling expenses 91 74

1,714 - p 1,818

At
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Payment to Auditors (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Statutory Audit Fees 1 1
Tax Audit and Tax Matters & -
Total 1 1
INCOME TAX (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Current income tax charge 1,672 1,152
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior 12 (131)
years
1,684 1,021
Deferred tax :
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (490) 95
Total 1,194 926
Reconciliation with effective tax rate
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows
—— Effective Tax Rate Amount
AREALS 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 2018-19
Profit before tax 9,571 5,347
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 34.94% 34.94% 3,344 1,868
Effect of deductions under Chapter VI-A of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 -22.60%| -21.34% (2,163) (1,141)
Effect of non-deductible expenses and others 6.02% 6.17% 576 330
18.36% 19.77% 1,757 1,057
Adjustments recognised in the current year in
relation to the current tax of prior years 0.13% -2 45% 12 (131)
MAT Credit Entitlement (575) -
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 18.49% 17.32% 1,194 926
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets :
Balance as |Recognised in| Recognised |Balance as| Recognised Recognised | Balance as
Particulars at 01-04- P&L during |in OCI during| at 31-03- |in P&L during|in OCl during| at 31-03-
2018 2018-19 2018-19 2019 2019-20 2019-20 2020
Property, plant and
equipment and intangible 2,051 174 - 2,225 85 - 2,310
assets
MAT Credit Entitilement (2,942) (269) (3,211) (575) (3,786)
(891) (95) - (986) (490) - (1,476)
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
I. Contingent Liabilities : R in Lakhs)
Particulars
31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts #
(i) Income Tax demands - -
(b) Bank Guarantees in favour of Parties
Indian Qil Corporation 76 =
Bharat Petroleum Corporation 92 -
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

I.Commitments (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019
Capital Commitments :
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
; 190 10,056
not provided for

Disclosure with respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the

“Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"

(“MSMED Act, 2006") is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such
vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on request made by the Company. There are no overdue

principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments
delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or

to such vendors at the Balance sheet date. There are no
for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or

outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous

year.

Particulars

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

1) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

2) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

3) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2008, along
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

4) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2006

5) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

6) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the smalll enterprises, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year towards Corporate Social

the year on CSR activities (included in note 26 of the Statement of Profit & Loss) as under:

Responsibility (CSR) as per
the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to ¥ 140 Lakhs (Pr.Yr. ¥ 138 Lakhs). Amount spent during

itfLakhs)
t
Bajiioulaie For the year Ended
31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019

Promotion of Education 138 137
Rural Development Projects - 1
Amount contributed to provide drinking water to Almel School 2
Total 140 138
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K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Financial Instruments
Accounting Classification and Fair Values:

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels

in the fair value hierarchy

31.03.2020 (% in Lakhs)
Carrying amount
Mandatorily QOther Other Total
Particulars at FVTPL - | financial financial carrying Fair value
Others assets - liabilities amount
amortised
cost
Financial assets
Investments - - i " =
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans - = = = =
Trade receivables = 9,181 - 9,181 =
Cash and cash equivalents - 422 = 422 -
Other Bank Balances - 17 = 17 =
Other financial assets - = - =
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings - = 26,970 26,970 -
Trade payables g = 2,179 2,179 g
Other financial liabilities 2 - 4,027 4,027 =
31.03.2019 (% in Lakhs)
Carrying amount
Mandatorily Other Other Total
Particulars at FVTPL - | financial f.ina'n-c_ial carrying Eair value
Others assets - liabilities amount
amortised
cost
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - - - -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans - - - - -
Trade receivables - 5,750 - 5,750 -
Cash and cash equivalents = 641 = 641 -
Other Bank Balances - - z
Other financial assets - - “ o ~
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings - - 17,015 17,015 )
Trade payables = = 9,565 9,565 -
Other financial liabilities - - 1,481 1,481 -

For those financial assets and liabilities, which are not carried at its fair value, disclosure of fair value is not required as the

carrying amounts approximates the fair values.




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 14, 16 and 18 off set by cash and
bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's net debt to equity ratio as at March 31, 2020 was as follows

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2019
Debt * 30,981 18,484
Less : Cash and bank balances 422 641
Net debt 30,559 17,843
Total equity 40,838 32,491
Net debt to equity ratio 74.83% 54.92%

* Debt is defined as long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and current maturities of long term borrowings as described in
notes 14,16 and 18.Cash and Bank balances include cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances as described in
Notes 9

Financial Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company's corporate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
International financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risk relating to the operation of the Company through
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written
principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivatives financial
instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal
auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instrument, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Company's income or the value of holding of its financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company's sales and purchases activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. The Company enters into plain vanilla forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk.




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Details of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposures:
(a) Outstanding forward exchange contracts for hedging purposes as on 31.03.2020

Cross Amount (T in Buy/Sell |Amount(Z| Buy/Sell
i Currency Lakhs) in Lakhs)
- - Sell
usb INR INR ) Sell
- - 1 | - Sell
GBP INR INR ) Sell

Note: Figures in brackets relates to the previous year

(b) The year-end unhedged foreign currency exposures are given below:

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilitles which expose the Company to currency risk are disclosed below.
The amounts shown are those reported translated at the closing rate. Unhedged foreign currency risk exposure at the end of
the reporting period has been expressed in Rupees.

UsD EURO GBP Total
As at 31.03.2020
Trade Receivables 2,826 - - 2.826
2,826 - - 2,826
As at 31.03.2019
Trade Receivables 4,179 69 4,248
4,179 - 69 4,248

* Includes firm commitments

Sensitivity Analysis :

Sensitivily analysis is carried out for un-hedged foreign exchange risk as at March 31, 2020. For every 1% strengthening /

weakening of Indian Rupees against all relevant uncovered foreign currency transactions, profit before tax and equity would be
impacted as follows:

Strengthening Weakening
Increase/ (decrease) in Year ended |Year ended |Year ended |Year
profit and equity 31.03.2020 (31.03.2019 31.03.2020 |ended
usD 28 42 (28) (42)
GBP = 1 = 1
28 42 (28) (42)

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate exposure (Tin Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 [31.03.2019
Non-current borrowings 14,016 4,801
Current borrowings 12,954 12,214
Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 18) 4,011 1,469
Total 30,981 18,484

Sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is carried out for floating rate borrowings as at March 31, 2020. For every 1% increase in average interest
rates, profit before tax would be impacted by loss of approximately ¥ 310 lakhs. Similarly, for every 1% decrease in average
interest rates there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit before tax. The calculations are based on a change in
the average market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

(iii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The Company's
investments are predominantly towards unquoted equity securities in subsidiary companies. The management contends that
such investments do not expose the Company to equity price risks. In general, these securities aré not held for trading
purposes.

Credit risk management

Credit risk Is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
Credit risk primarily arises from the Company's trade receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

(Z in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2020 [31.03.2019
Trade receivables 9,181 5,750

Trade receivables:

The Company mitigates credit risk by strict receivable management, procedures and policies. The Company has a dedicated
independent team to review credit and monitor collection of receivables. In addition, the Company mitigates credit risk
substantially through availment of credit insurance for both domestic and export buyers.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred
and expected credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses.
Given that the macro economic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the
Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, the management believes that unimpaired
amounts that are past due by more than 90 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive
analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss at the reporting dates related to customers that have defaulted on their
payments to the Company are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding dues, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Further, the Company constantly
evaluates the quality of trade receivable and provides allowance towards doubtful debts based on expected credit loss model.

Cash and cash equivalents and other Bank Balances:

The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the reporting dates which
has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of the banks and financial institutions are
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk.

Liquidity risk management :

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking

facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

All current financial liabilities are repayable within one year. The contractual maturities of non current financial liabilities are
disclosed in Note 14.




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020
33 Related Party disclosures
Disclosures under "Ind AS" 24 — Related Party Disclosure, as identified and disclosed by the management and relied upon by
the Auditors:
33.1 Name of related parties and nature of relationships:
Holding Company M/s. K.P.R.Mill Limited
Sri K.P.Ramasamy
Sri KPD Sigamani
Sri P.Nataraj
Sri C.R.Anandakrishnan
Sri E.K.Sakthivel (Daughter's Husband of Sri.KPD
Relatives of Key Manageme Sigamani)
Smt D.Geetha (Daughter of Sri.KPD Sigamani)
M/s K.P.R.Developers Limited
M/s K P R Cements Private Limited
M/s K P R Holdings Private Limited

Key Management Personne

Enterprises owned by key M/s K P R Agro Farms Private Limited
mana'gement . M/s Jahnvi Motors Private Limited
personnel/Directors or their : ; .
reldtivas M/s Quantum Knits Private Limited

M/s Galaxy Knits Limited
M/s KPR Exports Plc, Ethiopia
M/s KPR Mill Pte.Ltd, Singapore

33.2 Transactions during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date

(¥ in Lakhs)
Enterprises Holding Total as on
owned by Company 31/03/2020
key Key Enterprises owned by key
Nature of Transaction manageme | Management | management personnel /
nt Persons Directors or their relatives
personnel /
Directors or
- 16,754 16,754
Purchase of Goods
- (10,673) (10,673)
- 9 9
Purchase of Asset
- (16) (16)
- 227 227
Sale of Goods
4 (1,792) (1,792)
) - 3,000 3,000
Lease Rent Received
= (3,000) (3,000)
Processing and Fabrication N 17 17
Expenses - (1,069) (1,069)
1,944 - 1,944
Amount Payable
(1,967) - (1,967)
30 30
Advance Payable
(2,883) (2,883)
) 600 600
Advance Receivable
; ; - 2,500 2,500
Security Deposit
- (2,500) (2,500)

(Previous year figures are shown in brackets)




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

33.3 Details of transactions with related parties

a. Purchase of Goods (T in Lakhs)
Particulars ' 2019-20 | 2018-19
M/s. K.P.R.Mill Limited 16,754 10,673
b. Purchase of Asset (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 9 16
c. Sale of Goods (¥ in Lakhs
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 227 1,792
d. Lease Rent received (% in Lakhs
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 3,000 3,000
e. Processing / Service Charges Expenses (X in Lakhs
Name 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 17 1,069
f. Amount Payable (T in Lakhs
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.Quantum Knits Private Limited 1,944 1,967
1,944 1,967
g. Advance received from customer (in Lakhs
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 600 -
h. Advance payable to Customers (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 30 2,883
i. Security Deposit (¥ in Lakhs
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
M/s.K.P.R.Mill Limited 2,500 2,500
34 Earnings Per Share (EPS) (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 8,377 4,421
Less: Preference Dividend and Tax thereon 31 31
Weighted average number of equity shares 20,50,000 20,50,000
Face Value Per Share (%) 10 10
Earnings Per Share (%) - Basic and Diluted 407.12 214.15




K.P.R. SUGAR MILL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 .03.2020

35 Segment Reporting
The Company is operating in two business segments, viz., Textile and Sugar as follows

(T in Lakhs)
35.1 For the year ended 31 March, 2020
Particulars Business segments Total
Textile Sugar
Revenue 20,118 34,092 54,210
(20,092)| (25,252) (45,344)
Total 20,118 34,092 54,210
(20,092)| (25,252) (45,344)
Segment result 1,275 5,187 6,462
(1,684) (615) (2,299)
Unallocable expenses (net) -
Operating income 6,462
(2,299)
Other income (net) 3,109
. (3,048)
Profit before taxes 9,571
(5,347)
Tax expense 1,194
(926)
Profit for the year 8,377
(4,421)
Note: Figures in bracket relate to the previous year
(¥ in Lakhs)
35.2 For the year ended 31 March, 2020
Particulars Business segments Total
Textile Sugar
Segment assets 18,430 59,002 77,432
(20,970)[ (46,572) (67,542)
Unallocated Assets 1,862
(3,211)
Total assets 79,294
(70,753)
Segment liabilities 6,181 30,604 36,785
(12,609)| (23,428) (36,037)
Unallocated Liabilities 1,671
(2,225)
Total liabilities 38,456
(38,262)
Other information
Capital expenditure % 14,186 14,186
- (1,4586) (1,456)
Depreciation and amortization 583 3,068 3,651
(609) (2,789) (3,398)
Capital Employed 40,838
(Segment asset - Segment Liabilities)

Note: Figures in bracket relate to the previous year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020

Revenue from sale of products and services by geographic location of customers:

The geographic information analyses the Company's revenue by the Company's country of domicile and other countries. In
presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been determined based on the geographic location of the

customers.
(£ in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
India 32,879 28,370
Overseas 17,334 15,607
Total 50,213 43,977

The Company's operations are entirely carried ouf of India and as such all its non-current assets are located in India.

35.4 Information about major Customers

% of Sales
Name of the customer 501930 201819
CAC EL PRAT DE LLOBREGAT - 10.20
DECATHALON SPORTS IRELAND 13.66 -
ASDA STORES LTD 19.00 17.40

36 Operating Lease Disclosure
As Lessor
The Company has given factory premises, office spaces, plant and equipment and vehicles on cancellable operating leases
and has earned rental income of ¥ 2,500 lakhs for the year ended 31.03.2020. Since the aforesaid leases are short-term in
nature, there are no lease payments receivable after one year as at 31.03.2020. The expected amount of minimum lease
payments to be received within one year is ¥ 2,500 lakhs.

37 Disclosure of Employee Benefits:

37.1 Defined Contribution Plan (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Provident Fund 7 7
Employee State Insurance = "

37.2 |Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of
employment with the Company. The Company's obligation towards Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and the
details of actuarial valuation as at the year-end are given below:
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Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined
(asset) / liability and its components.

A. Changes in Present value of obligation

PV of obligation as the beginning of the year - 126.05 126.05
Current Service Cost - 0.00
Interest Cost - 0.00
Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation - 0.00
Balance at the end of the year 126.05 126.05
B. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:

FV of Plan Asset as at beginning of the year 79.41 79.41
Expected return on Plan Assets - 0.00

Actuarial gain / {loss) - z
Contributions by the employer s -

FV of Plan Asset as at end of the year 79.41 79.41
C. Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet

PV of obligation as at end of the year 126.05 126.05
FV of Plan Asset as at end of the year 79.41 79.41
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (46.64) (46.64)
D. Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost - 0.00
Interest Cost - 0.00
Expected return on Plan Assets - 0.00
Actuarial (gains) / Losses - 0.00
Net amount recognized in the year - 0.00
E. Assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity Plan

Discount Rate ( per annum) 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels (per annum) 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 0.00% 0.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 0.00 0.00

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,
promotions and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.
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Impact of CoVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. The Company has adopted measures to
curb the spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal
disruption. In view of the pandemic, the Company has considered internal and external information and has performed an
analysis based on current estimates while assessing the recoverability of assets including trade receivables, inventories and
other current / non-current assets (net of provisions established) for any possible impact on the standalone financial statement.
The Company has also assessed the impact of this whole situation on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity
position, internal financial controls etc., and is of the view that based on its present assessment, this situation does not
materially impact these standalone financial statements. The Management believes that the Company will not have any
challenge in meeting its financial obligations for the next 12 months. In this regard, the Company will continue to closely monitor
any material changes to future economic conditions.

The notes from 1 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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